Student Senate Consultative Committee (SSCC)
June 5, 2020
Minutes of the Meeting

These minutes reflect discussion and debate at a meeting of a committee of the University of Minnesota
Senate; none of the comments, conclusions, or actions reported in these minutes reflect the views of, nor
are they binding on, the senate, the administration, or the Board of Regents.

[In these minutes: Update on Fall Semester 2020 Scenario Planning]

PRESENT: Amy Ma (chair), Ryan Machtmes (vice chair), [saiah Ogren (ranking student
senator), Madison Anderson, Briggs Tople, Josh Lesser, Josh Westfield, Manpreet Singh, Rachel
Kieffer, Gunnar Frahm

REGRETS: Sydney Bauer, Annie Counihan
ABSENT: Sam Shepherd, Nathan Carlson, Otto Johnson

GUESTS: Rachel Croson, executive vice president and provost, University of Minnesota; Paige
Rohman, chief of staff, University Services; Kate Tyler, assistant to the provost, Office of the
Executive Vice President and Provost

OTHERS: Megan Sweet

Chair Amy Ma welcomed the committee and members introduced themselves.

1. Update on Fall Semester 2020 Scenario Planning - Ma introduced Executive Vice President
and Provost Rachel Croson to provide an update on the University’s fall scenario planning given
the COVID-19 pandemic. Croson introduced herself to the committee and said she has enjoyed
her short time here at the University since starting nine weeks ago. Croson stated that she is
interested in getting student feedback on the possibility of in-person instruction for the fall
semester and how to keep the entire campus community safe. Further information that will soon
be released can be found at the following website: https://provost.umn.edu/fall-instruction

Croson continued by stating that her office has been planning for a spectrum of activities,
including housing, dining, recreation, and other activities through the Office for Student Affairs.
Almost all of these aspects of student life will include some sort of planning for physical
distancing and at least some online learning. An area still under consideration, said Croson, is the
academic calendar. In order to avoid unnecessary travel, the decision has been made to no longer
hold any in-person classes after the Thanksgiving break and all finals will be held online. Each
campus will have their own plan and the Twin Cities is considering moving the start of the fall
semester up by two weeks into August. However, no campus has finalized their plans and
Croson is looking for student opinions on what their preferences would be. Paige Rohman, chief
of staff, University Services, clarified that many of the system campuses already begin their
semesters in August and may move their start times up by a week or so.


https://provost.umn.edu/fall-instruction

Ma asked if the size of the student population will play into these decisions to keep people more
physically distant. Croson replied that across the system, all in-person instruction should be done
by Thanksgiving and how each campus achieves that will be left up to each campus’s leaders.

Ogren asked how faculty feel about this plan given the disciplinary differences at play, such as
lecturing versus lab work. Croson replied that faculty retain their academic freedom to teach
their class as they see fit, but will have to comply with any public health guidance from the
University and state of Minnesota. One solution could be for courses to front load their lab or
studio work at the beginning of the semester and then move to more online learning. Ogren
added that perhaps these decisions should be left to the individual colleges. Croson
acknowledged that point and added that many professional schools maintain their own calendars
and can retain their right to their specific timelines and methods of teaching. Ogren then asked
what protocols will be in place when a student tests positive for COVID-19. Croson replied that
the University is consulting with many stakeholders, including the University’s Center for
Infectious Disease Research and Policy (CIDRAP) and will utilize any and all tools available to
combat the spread of the disease, including testing, isolation, contact tracing, and quarantine.

Josh Lesser asked about the possible issues arising in housing for professional and graduate
students who may sign a 9-12 month lease. Croson replied that the University is working to
address these issues for University run housing, however, it has little control over local and
independent landlords. She noted that emergency funding would not be enough to cover rent
costs and the University will consider that factor into their decision making process.

Ryan Machtmes commented that the plan for in-person learning is not practical as there will
likely be multiple waves of infections and asked what the plan is for a fallback if there is a major
recurrence on campus. Croson replied that fallback planning is being built into every possible
scenario as the University may have to make a quick pivot again as it did in March. Dr. Micheal
Osterholm, director, CIDRAP, has commented that a second wave would likely be calmer,
however it could definitely be exacerbated by the cold and flu season. Rohman added that the
University is also making preparations within its healthcare system to make sure it can absorb a
surge in cases.

Briggs Tople asked if the pass/fail (S/N) options will still be available for online learning.
Croson replied that the S/N option is always available if the faculty member for the course elects
it. She is currently in discussions with the faculty about requiring the option for the fall semester.
Tople further asked about options for students who may be immunocompromised and require
100% online learning. Croson stated that they are looking at providing a full first year online
curriculum where several courses are offered fully online due to the preference of the faculty.
Finally, Tople asked about community advisors and students in resident halls and the possible
necessity for roommates to be isolated. Croson replied that the University is working on a
detailed plan and Rohman said that they are working to identify other properties, like hotels, to
handle overflow or isolation.



Manpreet Singh asked about international students coming back or into the United States for the
first time, and if they will have enough resources and options to do their work from their home
countries. Croson stated that they are working to provide as much as they can in a way for virtual
courses and will have more information to share after the next meeting of the Board of Regents.
Singh asked what protocols will be in place for the physical intake of international students.
Croson replied that they are looking at several models for this sort of work but it is difficult due
to the fact that once the students are here they cannot self-isolate themselves if they are positive
for the virus due to a lack of housing. This planning will depend on the availability and accuracy
of testing in August.

Madison Anderson asked what safeguards will be in place for the move in situations in the
residence halls. Rohman explained that they are planning to extend the time for moving in from
about 2-3 days to about a week or longer. Additionally, Rohman said, they are looking to modify
individual move in times to specific hourly windows. Additionally, the University has been in
touch with some of the major landlords and apartment buildings about modifying their practices,
including modifying student leases.

Ma asked what modified or intensified course work could look like. Croson clarified that faculty
could intensify their course work during the in-person time so that more work could be finished
prior to Thanksgiving. However, Croson noted that many students were hesitant about that plan
and the University kind of pulled back on that plan but reiterated that lab or studio experiential
learning might still be front-loaded into the earlier portion of the semester.

Gunnar Frahm asked about the Duluth campus’s fall break and if that would still occur. Croson
replied that due to the accelerated schedule, the fall break will be eliminated for this year and
students will be encouraged to stay on campus to avoid any excess travel. Frahm further asked if
masks would be required for in-person learning. Croson noted that this has been a highly debated
topic and while the University is not currently requiring face coverings, it is highly
recommending it.

Croson then asked students from the Twin Cities what their opinions were about starting the fall
semester early, possibly on August 17th. Ma and Rachel Kieffer agreed that August 17th is
pretty unrealistic due to housing leases and summer internships. Kieffer added that adding 2-3
weeks of online learning after Thanksgiving is not that big of an issue. Ma noted that spring
semester final exams had some real issues and asked what is being done to make those run more
smoothly in the fall. Croson assured the students that courses will need to be designed and
scheduled in a way that makes sense. The University will work with the Office of Classroom
Management to implement a schedule so finals don’t overlap each other and so that faculty may
not use the last day of class to hold exams which may add to the workload many students face.

Finally, Croson noted that some next steps in this conversation includes a discussion with the
Faculty Senate about the academic calendar and a full decision will be made by the Board of
Regents based on the recommendations of the faculty and the task force headed by the Office of
the Executive Vice President and Provost.



Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Chris Kwapick
University Senate Office



